[bookmark: _GoBack]COUNTY TREASURER’S ASSOCIATION OF OHIO
Minutes of Association Legislative Committee Meeting
Meeting Date: April 20, 2021
Time & Location: 10:30 A.M via GoToMeeting Video Conference

Call to Order: 10:33 a.m. by President Diane Sargent.  

Attendance: Dan Talarek, Lorain County, Legislative Committee Co-Chair; Diane Sargent, Hocking County, President; Ric Wasserman, Athens County; Nancy Nix, Butler County; Robin Edwards, Champaign County; Vickie Myers, Defiance County; Cheryl Brooks-Sullivan, Franklin County; Jim Holmes, Franklin County; James Reese, Franklin County; Steve Welton, Hancock County; Denise Althauser, Hardin County; Lindsay Webb, Lucas County; John Burke, Medina County; Ellery Elick, Pickaway County; Brad Cromes, Portage County; Bart Hamilton, Richland County; Alex Zumbar, Stark County; Mike Migden, Summit County; Sam Lamancusa, Trumbull County; Kevin Futryk, CTAO Executive Director; Sheila Fox and Julia Wynn, Government Advantage Group.

Approval of Minutes:
[bookmark: _Hlk63767433]Ms. Sargent asked for a motion to approve the minutes of the Committee’s March 9, 2021 meeting. Mr. Zumbar moved to approve, seconded by Mr. Elick. Motion passed unanimously. 

Legislative Report:
Mr. Talarek turned the meeting over to Government Advantage Group for a legislative update. Mr. Futryk opined that the House agenda was focused on moving the biennial budget from Committee to the full House.  Mr. Futryk shared that Ms. Wynn had provided the Committee with the changes contained in Sub HB 110 (biennial budget) and would also share relevant changes contained in the omnibus amendment expected to be offered later that day. Mr. Futryk shared that state revenues were exceeding estimates by 2.5 – 4%, meaning additional dollars were likely to be available.

Ms. Wynn provided updates on specific bills to the Committee as follows:

-HB93 (address confidentiality) had a second hearing, with testimony from various proponents (including the Secretary of State). 

-Mr. Futryk gave an update on HB123 (community reinvestment areas), and shared that his team had reached out to the auditors and commissioners associations for feedback. He noted that Government Advantage Group had received no feedback from those groups as of the meeting. Ms. Wynn offered some additional perspective as to changes in the bill from introduction.

-HB 126 (requiring resolutions for valuation contestations) passed House; school districts remained opposed, as did townships. The bill was on to the Senate for consideration.

-HB 133 (valuation complaints) had received no hearing in Senate Committee; passed House unanimously in mid-March.

-HB 140 (levy ballot language) passed Committee on a party-line vote in mid-April. The bill requires the county auditor to round annual collections of school levies to the nearest $1,000, among other things. Ms. Wynn noted some concern from schools and others that language changes could reduce the success of levies; the bill was waiting on full House vote.

-Mr. Futryk reminded the Committee that the Land Bank Committee was to review HB 155 (land banks) and provide feedback. Mr. Lamancusa suggested the Association continue to monitor the bill, and expressed the opinion that it was unlikely to change land bank operations significantly as it was written. Mr. Hamilton concurred. The Committee agreed to continue monitoring by unanimous assent.

-HB 177 (blockchain) passed Committee unanimously in mid-April. Ms. Wynn said she expected it would pass the House soon, as it was unopposed.

- Ms. Wynn noted that HB 207 (expanded Homestead Exemption) from Rep. Dan Troy contained language that is introduced regularly, and was not scheduled for hearings.

-HB 255 (second publication of delinquencies online) was scheduled for a first hearing the week following the meeting.

-SB 1 (financial literacy) – no movement since March.

-SB 62 (loan interest rate requirements etc.). Ms. Wynn shared that the bill had not moved, likely due to opposition to consumer loan changes. 

-SB 15 (treasurer/fiscal officer liability). Mr. Futryk reminded the Committee that the bill passed the Senate unanimously, and was waiting on a House committee assignment. 

-SB 112 (tax foreclosures and land banks). Mr. Futryk noted that the bill had received hearings, and that there was some possibility it may be added to a budget bill. He had no confirmation on that at the time of the meeting.

-SB 115 (OPCS). Mr. Futryk said sponsor testimony on the bill was twice postponed at the request of the sponsor (Senator Schuring).  Chair Wilson said he will place the bill up again for its First Hearing at his next scheduled meeting.  We’re still hoping to expedite passage of SB 115 due to the Senate’s unanimous support last General Assembly.

Mr. Welton asked about HB 133 and value reductions related to COVID restrictions, and what those might look like. Ms. Wynn noted that the changes would be temporary (lasting through 2021), and also that the bill requires evidence to be presented as to the claimed reduction in value. 

Mr. Elick asked about HB 126 and whether schools would be required to pass a resolution to challenge valuations. Ms. Wynn confirmed that they would be.

Mr. Welton asked whether the township association was moving forward on advocating for any wind/solar control provisions. Ms. Wynn shared that bills were pending in both chambers with respect to wind projects in northwest Ohio, and those bills would require local government approval for such projects. Mr. Futryk added that townships have pushed for changes of this variety in the past, and that CTAO staff would continue monitoring those bills.

Ms. Wynn shared some additional updates for the Committee’s information, including on bills regarding property tax increase caps (no movement) and the creation of a temporary House select committee on property taxes and education funding (which would potentially require treasurer/auditor testimony). Neither bill was expected to move forward.

Mr. Futryk reminded the Committee of prior legislative conversations about changing treasurer terms of office, and informed the Committee that Rep. Fowler-Arthur was considering legislation to move the treasurer start date to March (rather than September). Mr. Elick asked what she felt were the reasons for the change, and Ms. Wynn shared that Rep. Fowler-Arthur based her concerns on constituent service in her home county. Mr. Cromes asked whether there was a legislative constituency for the change, and Mr. Futryk gave additional context for the situation in Ashtabula County. Mr. Cromes reiterated his question. Mr. Futryk stated that Rep. Fowler-Arthur might move forward anyway, and CTAO should be prepared to respond. Mr. Cromes stated that it is the responsibility of moving parties to justify changes, and CTAO might respond at that point. Mr. Talarek noted that the biggest motivation for keeping things as they are is the tax calendar, and Mr. Futryk concurred that the tax collection cycle was likely the best lens for considering term dates. Mr. Elick suggested a March start would not be a problem. Ms. Nix asked about the continuing education cycle, and Mr. Futryk noted a change would shorten that period as well. Mr. Cromes asked about the certification of transition legislation the General Assembly had recently passed, and suggested that it mitigates the concern somewhat. Ms. Nix suggested that moving the appointment authority from political parties to the county commissioners might address the issue. Mr. Welton opined that the current system works well, and stated that the association can assist with transitions (and does) at the district level. Mr. Cromes noted that staggering auditors and treasurers in March/September provides continuity in fiscal positions, as well. Mr. Lamancusa concurred that recent legislation on transitions likely addressed this concern…and shared concern about the politization of the treasurer position. Rather than changing terms, Mr. Lamancusa suggested potentially changing when treasurers are elected. Mr. Zumbar offered his opinion that moving the start time up for treasurers would raise issues with balancing and settlement, and keeping a September transition makes sense from that perspective as well. Ms. Sargent expressed support for keeping terms as-is, as well. Mr. Futryk suggested the Association create a committee to list out the reasons why the September transition date makes sense to respond to Rep. Fowler-Arthur. Mr. Talarek expressed support for that idea, and volunteered to ask Ms. Sargent to pick a group to do that (Ms. Sargent had temporarily left the meeting). The group agreed by mutual assent.

Mr. Futryk shared information about a proposed amendment from Rep. Merrin to, in the Representative’s words, “remove useless lines” from the annual rate report and “add a few” to increase transparency. Mr. Futryk stated that he had informed Rep. Merrin that all counties do the work differently. Ms. Brooks-Sullivan noted that Rep. Merrin’s annual report concerns were based on information from the local auditor’s office in Franklin County. Mr. Cromes asked whether this issue had a legislative constituency, and Mr. Futryk suggested that he did not know of one at that time. Mr. Zumbar noted that auditors are required to follow GASB and the state auditor’s rules in preparing a CAFR (and/or PAFR), and suggested the auditor’s association weigh in on this issue as well. Mr. Cromes stated that his office traditionally moves forward with information from the auditor as a pro forma matter, and that he did not have any objection to how that process takes place. Ms. Sargent stated that if auditors are unopposed, treasurers likely would not be either, and the Association should monitor the bill. Mr. Futryk suggested telling Rep. Merrin that the Association is neutral, and would re-evaluate when language is introduced. Mr. Talarek asked for a motion to that effect. Mr. Zumbar moved. Second Mr. Welton. The motion passed unanimously.

Mr. Cromes offered a brief review of some areas for the Committee’s consideration, including advocating for financial literacy, managing tax delinquent purchasers at Sheriff’s sales, reviewing mobile home taxation, and revisiting a proposal to provide treasurers with a DTAC stipend, and suggested more discussion of those items at the next meeting given the length of the present one. No further action was taken.

New Business/Old Business:
None.

Mr. Zumbar moved to adjourn. Second by Mr. Burke. Unanimous approval.

Adjourned 11:37 A.M.

Respectfully Submitted,


Brad Cromes, Portage Co. Treasurer
CTAO Secretary
